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Use Cases and User Stories

• Entrepreneurs opening their first business

• Existing business owners looking to expand their 
markets or better understand them

• Grant writers needing data for their proposal

• Academics doing research for their class

• Regional planners researching business gaps

• Emergency managers and staff doing preparedness, 
response, and recovery work



Industry Frameworks
Environmental Analysis

P.E.S.T: Political, Economic, Socio, Technology
Fahey & Narayanan, Macroenvironmental Analysis for Strategic Management. (West Publishing: 1986).

Industry Analysis

Porter’s Five Forces
Porter, M.E. (1979) "How competitive forces shape strategy", Harvard Business Review, March/April 1979. 

Craig S. Fleisher; Babette E. Bensoussan. “Chapter 6: Nine Forces.” Business and Competitive Analysis: Effective 
Application of New and Classic Methods (FT Press: 2013, 2007)

SWOT: External
Andrews, K (1971). The Concept of Corporate Strategy. Homewood, IL: R.D. Irwin



Which Industry?



Which Industry?

Same operations

Ford HQ vs Kellogg HQ

Who decides which industry?
Government - regulations

Publishers – classification

Management - strategy



NAICS Sectors

11 Agriculture, Forestry, 

Fishing and Hunting 

21 Mining 

22 Utilities 

23 Construction 

31-33 Manufacturing 

42 Wholesale Trade 

44-45 Retail Trade 

48-49 Transportation and 

Warehousing 

51 Information 

52 Finance and Insurance

53 Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 

54 Professional, Scientific, and Technical 

Services 

55 Management of Companies and 

Enterprises 

56 Administrative and Support and Waste 

Management and Remediation Services 

61 Education Services 

62 Health Care and Social Assistance 

71 Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 

72 Accommodation and Food Services 

81 Other Services (except Public 

Administration) 

92 Public Administration



North American Industry 

Classification System

Example
DescriptionCodeLevel

Finance and Insurance52Sector

Insurance Carriers & related activities524Subsector

Insurance Carriers 5241*Industry Group

Direct Life Health & Med Ins Carriers52411Industry

Direct Life Insurance Carriers524113U.S. Industry

* Mexico & Canada Compatible



What’s new with 2017 NAICS

• All Copper, Nickel, Lead, and Zinc Mining combined (212230)

• Major Household Appliance Manufacturing (335220) 
• No longer separating out Cooking, Refrigeration, Laundry, and Other appliances

• Department Stores and Discount Department Stores (with 
insignificant perishable grocery sales) combine (452210)

• Warehouse Clubs and Supercenters  and Discount Department Stores  
(with  significant perishable grocery sales) combined  (452311)

• Electronic Shopping, Electronic Auctions, Mail-Order Houses 
combined  (454110)

• Record Production and Distribution combined (512250)

• All Research and Development in Nanotechnology pulled out of 
other industry sectors (541713)



NAICS Look Up and OMB Development



North American Product Classification System 
2017 (NAPCS 2017) version Beta 1.0 

Hierarchical Structure Example (library services)

New Product-, Merchandise-,  
and Services- Lines



What and why NAPCS?

What is the purpose of NAPCS?

Comprehensive demand/market-oriented classification framework for services and 
goods.

NAPCS was developed as a reference classification to facilitate the analysis of economic 
data based on markets rather than production processes and allows comparisons of 
products among the three North American countries.

What is the relationship between NAPCS and NAICS?

NAPCS, a product classification system, and NAICS, an industry classification system, are 
independent but complementary. 

A product produced/sold/distributed by multiple industries carries the same title, 
definition, and code in NAPCS, regardless of its industries of origin. 

Products can be linked to the industries that produce/sell/distribute them, and 
industries can be linked to the products. 

What else can NAPCS be used for?

BEA’s National Accounts (NIIP), Harmonized Commodity Description and Coding System 
(HS) 2012 and Extended Balance of Payments Services (EBOPS) 2010.



What is an Establishment?



Economic Census Structure
•Census, not a survey- All Business

oAdministrative records- Social Security & IRS

•Every five years with years ending in 2 and 7

o Legal Basis Title 13, United States Code (U.S.C.), Section 9, 

131, 224, and 225. Copies retained in respondents’ files are 

immune from legal process.

•Core data (Geographic) 

• Number of establishments

oValue of sales, receipts, revenue, shipments, or business done

oAnnual payroll

oNumber of employees

oEconomic Census NOT Census of Population and 

Housing

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/about.html


Economic Census Geography

http://www.census.gov/econ/census07/www/geography/geography_changes.html


What is new with 2017 Geography?
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-

census/geographies/change-notes.html

• Metro Areas – the Core Based Statistical Areas in 15 states had some 
type of change

• Counties – Alaska, South Dakota, and Virginia had changes to 1 or more 
counties

• Economic Places – every state had places with area gain, loss, and/or 
code or name changes. There are 442 new Economic Places being 
recognized and 171 places that are being dropped for 2017, primarily 
due to population decline

• Offshore for drilling and mining along the coasts. <3 miles with state 
data

• For example:  North Carolina has 474 Total Places
Gains Losses Name Change

245 area size 109 area size 3 name changes

22 places 6  places

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/geographies/change-notes.html


US Island Geographic Coverage

Release Date

American Samoa
October 2019

CNMI October 2019

Guam October 2019

Puerto Rico December 2020

US Virgin Islands October 2019

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/about/island-areas.html

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/about/island-areas.html


Adaptations of DIKW pyramid by US Army Knowledge Managers, 
from https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/DIKW_pyramid

Data are not:
Information
Technology

Analytics
Evidence
Research

Visualizations

Ideas

Data are
collected facts
“raw material”



Questions 
about NAICS & 
other 
definitions



• Census Bureau Economic Surveys are a key source for official statistics companies can use: 

– Monthly and Quarterly are small sample surveys that provide the most TIMELY data available

– Annual surveys have larger samples and provide the most up-to-date TREND data available

– Every 5 years, the Economic Census measures all businesses and provides the most COMPREHENSIVE data 
available 

• These surveys set the standard for U.S. economic statistics, and are fueled by the data provided by individual 
businesses

Monthly 
and Quarterly 

Surveys

Annual Surveys

Economic Census – Every 5 years

Census Economic Surveys

From Census



• NAICS: Nearly every 2- thru 6-digit code covered by the Census 
Bureau

• Excludes Agriculture and other types of business (see 
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/guidance/understanding-

naics.html#par_textimage ) 

• Geography: National, state, metro, county, place, and ZIP Code levels

• Other charecteristics, including business size and Franchise status

• Over 200 data variables shown (common and sector-specific ones)

• Product Lines data (revenue by products sold or manufactured or 
services provided)

See https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census.html and 
https://www.census.gov/data/academy/webinars/2019/2017-econ-census.html for more 
information, including release schedule for 2017 and what’s new.

Note: Census also have programs related to the EC, including the Economic Census of Island 
Areas, the Survey of Business Owners (and the Annual Survey of Entrepreneurs / Annual 
Business Survey) and the Commodity Flow Survey

The Economic Census (EC)

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/guidance/understanding-naics.html
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census.html
https://www.census.gov/data/academy/webinars/2019/2017-econ-census.html


Other Changes with the 2017 Economic 
Census

• New disclosure rules -- new privacy rules will result in the establishment 
count being suppressed when less than 3 or when the other statistics are 
suppressed. 

• You will be seeing a lot more of D 

• Local areas published by sector – Place-level data will no longer be 
available for the Manufacturing sector and the NAICS and geographic 
levels published for other sectors may be adjusted based on data quality 
and privacy issues.

• less geographic details

• Introduction to the Annual Business Survey (ABS) -- The Survey replaces 
three existing surveys: the five-year Survey of Business Owners (SBO) for 
employer businesses, the Annual Survey of Entrepreneurs (ASE), and the 
Business Research and Development and Innovation Survey for 
Microbusinesses (BRDI-M).



www.census.gov

http://www.census.gov/
http://www.census.gov/




Downloading Data – Pros and Cons
Snapshot in time

Pros

• “I like to be in control…”

• “I’ve always done it this way… why change?”

• “My platform/tool/system requires it”

• “My users expect good performance”

• “I have to do it this way…”
• Privacy/security/financial reasons

• “Is there another way?”

Cons:

The exact same list… 
plus:

• Space
• Archiving/curating 

data
• Need for regular 

updates

2012 downloads https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/data/tables.html

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/data/tables.html


• QuickFacts

• My Congressional District

• Global Market Finder 

• Census Business Builder

• OnTheMap and OTM for Emergency Management 

• American FactFinder

• USA Trade Online 

• data.census.gov

• DataFerrett

• Application Programming Interface (API)

Ways to Access Data

E
a
s
e

o
f 

U
s
e

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/guidance/finding-data.html

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/US/PST045218
https://www.census.gov/mycd/
https://www.census.gov/library/visualizations/interactive/export-markets.html
https://www.census.gov/data/data-tools/cbb.html
https://onthemap.ces.census.gov/
https://onthemap.ces.census.gov/em/
https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml
https://usatrade.census.gov/
https://data.census.gov/cedsci/
https://dataferrett.census.gov/
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/guidance/finding-data.html


Series and Reports

•Geographic Area Series

oAll Geographic data 

•Puerto Rico & Island Area

•Industry Series (US only)

oProduct Lines NAPCS X 

NAICS

oEstablishment and Firm Size

oConcentration Ratios

oLegal Form of Organization

oFranchising Reports

•Subject Series (ST)

oMiscellaneous Subjects

oBusiness Expenses

•First Look Report

•Bridge Report 

•Comparative Statistics Report

• between 12 & 17

•Nonemployer Statistics

•Survey of Business Owners

•Commodity Flow Survey

•Materials Consumed 

oMining and Manufacturing



Core Business Statistics Series

First Look: presents preliminary data at the 2 -
6 digit 2017 North American Industry 
Classification System (NAICS) levels for 2017. 
These data will be superseded by subsequent 
data files in this and other series.

Franchise Statistics Report: presents data for 
selected industries, identified by 6 digit 2017 
NAICS codes, with establishments engaged in 
franchising.

Comparative Statistics Report: presents data 
at the 2-6 digit 2017 NAICS levels for 2017 and 
2012, at the US and State geography levels.

Bridge Between 2017 NAICS and 2012 NAICS 
Report: presents 2017 data for industries 
whose NAICS classification has changed 
between 2017 and 2012. The Bridge Report is 
released in two tables. For the first table, data 
are shown for each of the 6 digit 2017 NAICS 
industries and their 8 digit 2012 NAICS 
components. In the second table, data are 
shown for each corresponding 6 digit 2012 
NAICS industry and its 8 digit 2017 NAICS 
components.

Out Today

Webinar on how to use Data.Cenus.Gov

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census.html
https://www.census.gov/data/academy/webinars/2019/economic-census-first-look.html


Geographic Area Series

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/
economic-census/guidance/series/
geographic-area.html

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/durhamcitynorthcarolina,US/HCN010212
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/guidance/series/geographic-area.html
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/guidance/series/geographic-area.html
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/guidance/series/geographic-area.html


US Island Geographic Coverage

Release Date

American Samoa
October 2019

CNMI October 2019

Guam October 2019

Puerto Rico December 2020

US Virgin Islands October 2019

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/about/island-areas.html

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/about/island-areas.html


Subject Series NAPCS x NAICS

• Use to be 
• Merchandise Line

• Product Line

• Revenue Line

• Service Line

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census
/guidance/series/subject-summary.html

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/guidance/series/subject-summary.html
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/economic-census/guidance/series/subject-summary.html


http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/productview.xhtml?pid=ECN_2007_US_44SLLS1&prodType=table


Subject Series: Establishment & Firm Data

• Concentration ratios (How much do the largest 
firms contribute to the data?)

• Establishment and firm size (How large are the 
establishments or firms within an industry?)

• Other miscellaneous topics (e.g. class of 
customer, type of food service, end-of-year 
inventory, petroleum bulk storage, etc.)

• General Summary (Detailed Manufacturing, 
Mining, and Construction data for the US)

• Materials Summary (What materials are used 
by Manufacturing and Mining industries?)

• Location of Plants Summary (Where are 
manufacturing plants located?)

Data for these topics are primarily available at 
the U.S. level and, for selected topics, at the state 
level. Topics covered by each sector will vary.



Miscellaneous Subjects

• 7 tables added
1 Utilities (“Cost of Purchased Gas for 
Resale by Utilities”)•1 Construction 
(“Location of Const: Employment 
Size”)•1 Wholesale Trade (Petroleum)•1 
Educational Services (“Modes of 
Instruction”)•1 Healthcare (“New 
Patient Care Revenue by Payer”)•2 
Accommodation (“Electronic Menu 
Ordering” and Limited/Full/Luxury 
Hotel”)

• 38 tables dropped
2 Mining, 4 Construction, 4 
Manufacturing, 1 Trans. & Warehousing, 
2 Information, 4 Finance & Insurance, 5 
Real Estate, 6 Prof/Sci/Tech, 2 
Management, 2 Admin, 2 Healthcare, 2 
Accommodations, 2 Other Services   
Details still being finalized

November 2020-September 2021



Nonemployer Statistics

Includes the Gig workers

Businesses w/o paid 

employees account for

75% of all businesses

3.5% of all sales

Excluded from other 

census reports

Updated annually Gig Economy

https://www.census.gov/data/academy/webinars/2019/gig-economy.html


Census of Governments and Public Schools

https://www.fdlp.gov/understanding-the-census-of-government-2nd-largest-industry-in-the-us


More from the Economic Census

• Franchise Report

• Business Expenses in Mining, Construction, Manufacturing, and Retail

• Commodity Flows Survey



What is not covered in the Economic Census



Not sure if you can find the data?

• Review the survey instrument for the industry of interest.
• https://bhs.econ.census.gov/ombpdfs

• Contact Census
• General Economic Census Information & Industry-Specific Questions

• Phone: (301)763-5154 or 1(800)242-2184

• E-mail: ewd.outreach@census.gov

https://bhs.econ.census.gov/ombpdfs
mailto:ewd.outreach@census.gov


Common Mistakes

•Nonemployer versus all other reports

•Totaling up the columns

•Not going beyond the core geographic data points

•Not realizing tax exempt data is separate in 

•Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services

•Educational Services

•Health Care and Social Services

•Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation

•Other Services



• Create maps of our state with all the geography in it.
• Make it a puzzle
• Bring it to gerrymandering parties

• Invite the Historical Society to track the industries in your 
communities.

• Have Wikipedia parties with new data

• Invite the Chamber of Commerce and other clubs
• give them quiz questions

• Have a release party with your State Data Center

• Dedicate a computer just to entrepreneurships with CBB and 
relevant links.

• Arm citizen journalists with the Census of Government and 
School data.

• YOUR idea here

https://www.census.gov/about/partners/sdc.html


Inter-university Consortium for 
Political and Social Research 
(ICPSR) repository

Numerical Data 

FDLP Academy

Accidental Government 
Librarian

Data Academy from Census

Government Sources

Learning more

https://www.icpsr.umich.edu/icpsrweb/ICPSR/ssvd/index.jsp
http://login.icohere.com/public/topics.cfm?cseq=1172
http://www.nclaonline.org/government-resources
https://www.census.gov/academy


boettcher@georgetown.edu

202 687-7495
Twitter: @jenny.wombat

These slides are licensed under 
a Creative Commons Attribution-
NonCommercial 4.0 International 

License

mailto:boettcher@georgetown.edu
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/4.0/


The Census Developers Site Steps:

1. Request a Key
2. Sign up for our 

Newsletter and 
Forum

3. Browse the 
Discovery Tool

4. Review the 
Updates, etc.

https://www.census.gov/developers/

https://www.census.gov/developers/


U.S. Census Bureau Data API Summary
See the Discovery Tool at: https://www.census.gov/developers/

Data Category Census Program Period(s) Provided
# Datasets 
/Endpoints 
Provided

Demographic

American Community Survey 1-year 2012 - 2017 21

American Community Survey 3-year 2012 - 2013 4

American Community Survey 5-year 2005-2009 thru 2013-2017 33

Census Planning Database 2015, 2016, 2018 6
Current Population Survey time series 1

Decennial Census 1990, 2000, 2010 7
International Database time series 2

Population Estimates 1990, 2000, 2013 - 2018 63

Population Projections 2012, 2014 10

Small Area Health Insurance Estimates time series 1

Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates time series 2

BETA - ACS 1-year 2010 - 2014, 2016, 2017 19

BETA - ACS 5-year 2010 - 2014 6
BETA Decennial Census 2010 2

Economic 
(Business)

Annual Survey of Entrepreneurs 2014 3
Annual Survey of Manufacturers time series 3

Business Dynamics Statistics time series 1
County Business Patterns 1986 - 2016 31

ZIP Code Business Patterns 1994 - 2016 23

Economic Census 1997, 2002, 2007, 2012 5

Economic Indicators time series 15

International Trade
2014 - 2018 5
time series 18

Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics time series 3

Nonemployer Statistics 1997 - 2016 20
Public School Finances 2012 1

Survey of Business Owners 2012 3
TOTAL Datasets / Endpoints 243

The Discovery Tool

https://www.census.gov/developers/


NAPCS Structure



NAPCS: Books



Abbreviations and Symbols

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/susb/about/glossary.html



• 5 surveys that provide economic statistics about state and 
local governments

• Serve as public-sector counterpart to private sector data 

• Response is voluntary

• Virtually no confidentiality restriction – data is public 
record

• Core Program Content

- Organization and Structure 

- Government Employment 

- Government Finances

 Released on American FactFinder, Excel files, and other 
Census tools

Public Sector (Governments)



•Country Business Patterns

•Annual Survey of Manufacturers

•Advance Monthly Retail Sales

•Monthly Wholesale Trade

•Manufacturers’ Shipments, Inventories and Orders

•Quarterly Services Survey

•Value of New Construction Put in Place

•Housing Completions

•Rental Vacancy Rate

•US International Trade in Goods and Services

•Quarterly Financial Report 

•E-Commerce Monthly

•Census of Governments – Public Sector

• Public Education Finances

Economic Indicators from 

Census

https://www.fdlp.gov/understanding-the-census-of-government-2nd-largest-industry-in-the-us


P.E.S.T. Analysis

•Political

oLegislative

 LOC’s Thomas

oExecutive

 GPO’s Federal Register

oJudicial

•Economic

oSector Inflation

 BLS’s PPI 

oMicroeconomic trends

 FRB’s FRED

 Economic Briefing Room

•Socio-cultural

oNorms & Ratios

 IRS’s Statistics of Income

oPeers and partners

 Census’s Economic Census

 Census’s Annual Surveys

•Technology

oPatents

 Citation Analysis

oTech Transfer

 Government funded 

research to license



Country/MSA Business Pattern

http://www.census.gov/econ/cbp/index.html


Economic – Macroeconomic
•Federal Reserve Board’s FRED

 http://research.stlouisfed.org/fred2

http://research.stlouisfed.org/fred2/tags/series


Economic – Sector Inflation

•Bureau of Labor Statistics- Producer Price Index
 http://www.bls.gov/data

http://www.bls.gov/data/




Questions 
about 
Economic 
Census


